
LOAN REVIEW BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2016 
 

 

Present: Liddicoat, Rich, Rockwood, Wapneski, Werch, Will, Staff Accountant  

  Mashack  

Absent: None 

 

 

Will called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 

Approve meeting minutes – July 15, 2015 

Rockwood moved and Liddicoat seconded a motion to approve the July 15, 2015 minutes 

as presented.  Motion carried. 
 

Receive update – status of loans, inquiries, fund balance, etc. 

Rich briefly highlighted the most recent report on the City’s portfolio.  The current 

balance in the fund is $311,032.11.  Rich noted the status of the three loans where 

payments are not current.  The City has a judgment against Hilltop, and life insurance on 

the owner of Maisyknits.  Rita’s LLC has filed bankrupcty, and that loan will be written 

off the City’s accounting records.  All other loans are current as of June 30, 2016.  

Liddicoat requested follow-up on the life insurance policy on the owner of Maisyknits to 

ensure the policy is still in force. 

 

Request for new loan – Ernessi Organics 

Bryan Ernst, Owner of Ernessi Organics, was present to address the Board.  Ernessi 

Organics was founded two years ago and is selling to 16 locations versus 6 locations last 

year.  Basil, microgreens and herbs are grown using hydroponics, and no soil.  Produce is 

harvested, packaged and delivered within 24 hours.  Sales are up dramatically and 

projections are to reach $300,000 in sales.  Ernst is requesting a loan in the amount of 

$60,000 to assist with the expansion, which will double output.  Will inquired about 

competition.  Ernst replied there are a few more smaller operations starting, but pricing 

and product are not competitive.  Ernst stated he has good partnerships with the produce 

managers and will be able to fulfill their full herb line.  Wapneski inquired about 

contracts.  Ernst replied he has standing orders.  Mashack inquired about the difference 

between aquaponics versus hydroponics.  Ernst replied that a lot more is involved with 

aquaponics because of the fish.  Much more infrastructure is required, and the operations 

are not viable without the assistance of government grants.  Rockwood inquired if 

restaurant sales are up.  Ernst replied yes, Knuth’s is up and they are piloting a program 

to use spent grains to grow specialty mushrooms.  Sales at the Roxy and Gallaghers are 

up as well, but Ernst sees a much better profit margin on grocery store sales, as they 

recognize the quality.  Werch inquired if Ernst’s efforts are focused on increasing grocery 

store sales, and Ernst replied yes.  Liddicoat stated he believes Ernessi Organics has a 

bright future, but he is concerned about a young business being over leveraged.  Ernst 

stated that Tom and Mary Avery, business professors at Ripon College are investors.  



Ernst’s wife will also be joining the business soon.  The last $60,000 loan went almost 

entirely toward equipment.  Liddicoat indicated this should be reflected on a balance 

sheet.  Since leverage is a little risky for this business, Liddicoat inquired if the investors 

would consider being on “stand-by” until the City says okay.  Liddicoat believes the 

business is too fragile to debt service both loans.  Ernst replied that the sales are already 

sold, and he isn’t cash strapped.  He has one $39,000 loan with monthly payments for a 

new delivery truck.  The other $21,000 loan has no payments for a year and deferred 

interest.  The new truck is the only collateral.  Rockwood noted that some expenses have 

mushroomed.  Ernst replied that because sales have doubled, expenses have doubled.  

Ernst currently has 14 racks and will be adding another 14 racks, doubling capacity.  The 

third party distributor idea did not work out.  Liddicoat inquired about increasing pricing.  

Ernst replied that the price increase would be passed on to the consumer.  The value is the 

freshness.  Ernst could charge more, but he wants to grow the business.  Once he has all 

main 8 herb sections, then he could consider increasing pricing.  He doesn’t want to lose 

to competition, as not all customers will pay that much more.  Ernst is looking at 

decreasing expenses and making things more efficient; for example, labeling is not 

manual any more.  Werch inquired why Ernst’s last payment was late.  Ernst replied it 

was not for the lack of dollars, but for the lack of time.  With his wife coming on soon, 

Ernst will be able to focus on operations.  Werch inquired why not give up the restaurant 

rack space for grocery.  Ernst replied there wouldn’t be sufficient space to get a full 

lineup, not even close.  Liddicoat inquired if Ernst has all Festival Foods stores.  Ernst 

replied he has 14 out of 24.  The other 10 stores have delivery issues as they are located 

in LaCrosse, Eau Claire, etc.  Ernst is concentrating on filling existing orders.  His 

locations furthest away are Madison or Green Bay.  Werch inquired about the decrease in 

Growing Media.  Ernst replied that he has found a much cheaper option, and cloning 

lowers Growing Media as well.  Will inquired about life insurance.  Ernst replied he has 

$150,000 in life insurance, more than enough to cover the first $60,000 loan as well the 

second proposed $60,000 loan.  Standard Operating Procedures need to be delivered to 

Gary Born.  New positions will be hired from Diverse Options, or Ernst will reach out to 

the community.  Ernst is looking at 3 full-time and 2 part-time employees.  The number 

of full-time employees will increase to 4 when his wife joins in August.  So he is looking 

at 7 employees total.  The Avery’s know they would be in second position to the City.  

Wapneski inquired if Ernst is concerned about employees spinning off.  Ernst replied that 

the employees do not know the nutrient formulation.  His Operations Manager has a non-

complete agreement.  Werch inquired about size, scope and future.  Ernst replied all work 

will be done by licenses contractors.  He has room for 2/3 more expansion.  After that he 

will need to look for a larger facility for plants.  He would keep his current facility for 

mushrooms.  Werch inquired about leasing a delivery truck versus buying new.  Ernst 

replied he considered that option, but the delivery truck has custom features, plus there is 

always the mileage issue. 

 

Rockwood moved and Werch seconded a motion to recommend approval of the $60,000 

loan to Ernessi Organics with terms set at 4% interest for 7 years, with the condition of 

the preparation of a balance sheet to be reviewed by members of the Loan Review Board.  

After some discussion the motion and second was withdrawn.  Ernst will prepare a 



balance sheet, which will be emailed to the Loan Review Board.  The Board will 

reconvene to review. 

 

 

With no other business before the Board, Werch moved and Will seconded a motion to 

adjourn.  Motion carried 6-0.  Will declared the meeting adjourned at 4:18 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Lori Rich, City Administrator 


